AUG 3 1 2015

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON

CASE NO.: 332047-III

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON

DONNA GARCIA, A Washington Resident; CONCEPCION GARCIA, an Individual; PATRICIA JANE LEIKAM, as the Administrator of the Estate of Tiairra Garcia, A Deceased Person,

Appellants,

٧.

FRANKLIN COUNTY, a Municipal Corporation,

Respondent

Appellants' Brief on Appeal

James P. Ware, WSBA No. 36799 jware@mdklaw.com MDK Law 777 108th Ave. NE, Suite 2000 Bellevue, WA 98004 (425) 455-9610

Attorneys for Appellants

INTRODUCTION

With this Appeal, Appellants (collectively referred to as "Garcia") seek review of the trial court's dismissal of Appellants' claims on summary judgment. Specifically, Appellants challenge the trial court's determination that a prior matter, Garcia v. City of Pasco (70395-1-I), collaterally estops Garcia's claims against Franklin County.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

Did the trial court err when it determined that Garcia's claims against Franklin County were collaterally estopped by the Court of Appeals Division I (Case Number 70395-1-I) decision, when the Court's decision dealt solely with whether the City of Pasco owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia and not whether Franklin County owed her a duty?

Is summary judgment finding that Franklin County did not owe a duty to Tiairra Garcia proper when the county-operated 911 dispatch's actions constituted an affirmative act under RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS 302B which gave rise to a duty of ordinary care?

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

A. Substantive Facts.

This case arises from the death of Tiairra Garcia due to a gunshot wound that occurred on June 22, 2008. Tiairra Garcia lay dying in 1911 Parkview, Pasco, Washington as the Pasco Police stood outside (and were

there in response to numerous 911 calls) questioning the residence's occupant about a van wrecked and abandoned on the property. The responding officer treated the scene as a hit-and-run despite the fact that a neighbor had contacted 911 and informed the 911 operator that the occupants of the van were dragging an obviously injured person into the back of the home, that a domestic dispute had occurred there days early, and that something other than a simple hit-and-run was transpiring.²

Although Tiairra Garcia's life ended at 1911 Parkview near midnight, her night began innocently enough with Marnicus "Pooh"

Lockhard and Ashone Hollinquest picking her up to go out for the night.³

The two drove with Tiairra Garcia to a Pasco tavern, Joey's 1983.⁴ There,

Tiairra Garcia sat in the van while Lockhard and Hollinquest drank inside until Lockhard and Hollinquest were ejected for fighting approximately half an hour to one hour after arriving.⁵

After being ejected from the tavern, Tiairra then drove the parties to another location. While in the parking lot of another tavern,

¹ CP 695-96.

² CP 696.

³ CP 695.

^{3 &}lt;u>Id</u>

Hollinguest and Lockhard exchanged a gun.⁶ The gun discharged and the bullet struck Tiairra.7

Lockhard then pushed Tiairra aside, at the time she was in the driver's seat, and began to drive the vehicle from the passenger's seat to 1911 Parkview.⁸ In route Lockhard struck numerous vehicles which resulted in significant damage to the van. Numerous 911 callers reported that the vehicle was sparking because it was driving on its rims. Upon arriving at 1911 Parkview, the van careened onto the lawn and struck a fence. The resulting noise startled Melissa Genett, a neighbor across the street, and she directed her fiancé, John Gorton, to contact 911. 10 In his 911 call, Gorton described to the 911 operator the scene unfolding outside. He described the state of the van and that two individuals were dragging/caring someone into the back of the house. Mr. Gorton also stated that a domestic dispute had occurred at the house the day prior and that the police needed to get there because it was clear "something was going on" because the men were clearly dragging an unconscious person into the back of the house. 911 indicated that police were in route and

⁶ <u>Id</u>.; see also CP 725. ⁷ <u>Id</u>. ⁸ CP 695, 725.

continued to request information related to the incident. 11 Gorton's call concluded when the police arrived at 1911 Parkview. 12

Based on John Gorton's conversation with 911, he and Genett got the impression that 911 was there to respond to their specific concerns. 13 Gorton stated that someone was being dragged into the house, that he had witnessed a domestic dispute the night before, that something was going on, and that police needed to go to the house immediately. ¹⁴ Importantly, the 911 operator lead Gorton and Genett to believe that the police were there to address his concerns specifically (Tiairra Garcia being dragged into the house) and not simply in response to a hit-and-run. 15 Neither Gorton nor Genett spoke directly to the responding officer because they were lead to believe that the officers were there to investigate whether someone had been injured and needed assistance. 16

Upon arrival at 1911 Parkview the police spoke to the renter of 1911 Parkview. 17 Then, after a cursory view of the van, the officer made arrangements for it to be towed and left. 18 Inside 1911 though, Tiairra Garcia lay in a room adjacent to the living room unconscious. 19 While

¹¹ CP 477-78 ¹² <u>Id</u>. ¹³ CP 382.

¹⁴ CP 477-78.

¹⁵ CP 382.

¹⁷ CP 377-78.

¹⁹ CP 696-97.

the police were present and talking to the resident of the home (she is referred to as "Granny"), Hollinquest was in the room with Tiairra Garcia. He left periodically to speak to Lockhard who, at some point in time, instructed Hollinquest to change clothes so that they could discard the ones they were wearing. After the police left Hollinquest and Lockhard dragged Tiairra Garcia into the garage where they discussed dismembering her body in order to dispose of it. Hollinquest apparently protested and the parties placed Tiairra Garcia into a sleeping bag and wrapped it with duct tape. The men then proceeded to procure a vehicle and dove to a place near Mt. Rainer National Park where they attempted to hide Tiairra Garcia's body in a ravine. Both men then fled the state. The police did not recover Tiairra Garcia's remains until June 2009.

B. Garcia v. City of Pasco (70395-1-I).

In Garcia v. City of Pasco, Garcia brought suit against the City of Pasco, ²¹ Joey's 1984, Hollinquest and Lockhard. The claims against the City of Pasco were relatively straightforward: Garcia claimed that the responding officer breached his duty to Tiairra Garcia when he investigated the scene at 1911 Parkview because he investigated the scene

²⁰ CP 697.

²¹ It should be noted that at the trial court level, the City of Pasco was represented by the Honorable George Fearing. Judge Fearing presented argument at the summary judgment hearing that resulted in the dismissal of the claims against the City of Pasco.

only as a simple hit-and-run.²² The trial court dismissed Garcia's claims on summary judgment stating that Garcia's claims did not fit into one of the four exceptions to the public duty doctrine.²³ Garcia timely appealed.

On appeal, Garcia focused their argument on a then recent decision by Division I, Robb v. City of Seattle, which stated that a government entity may owe a duty of ordinary care in certain circumstances pursuant to RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS 302B. Specifically, the Robb decision stated that a government actor may owe a duty where the government agent either knew or should have known that her actions could increase another person's risk of harm from the illicit acts of a third-party. Garcia argued that the City's action constituted an affirmative act which introduced a new risk to Tiairra Garcia. Because the City created a new risk, Garcia argued, the trial court erred when it dismissed Garcia's claims. Seculation of the court erred when it dismissed Garcia's claims.

In affirming the lower court decision, Division I found that the public duty doctrine barred Garcia's claims.²⁶ The Court stated that the rescue exception to the public duty doctrine was inapplicable because neither the City nor Franklin County, the operator of the 911 call system,

²² CP 757-64

²³ CP 432-33.

²⁴ CP 242-52

²⁵ The trial court dismissed Garcia's claims against the City because it found that the public duty doctrine applied and therefore, the City did not owe Tiairra Garcia a duty. ²⁶ CP 183

made any gratuitous assurances to render aide to Tiairra Garcia.²⁷ Further, the Court found that RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302B did not apply because Garcia's claims were based upon a failure to act, not an affirmative act.²⁸ Accordingly, the Court concluded, the City did not owe Tiairra Garcia pursuant to RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302B.

C. Procedural History of this Matter.

Garcia brought an action against Franklin County alleging common law negligence and negligent training and supervision of the 911 operator who spoke to John Gorton. Franklin County moved for summary judgment alleging that the 70395-1-I decision collaterally estopped Garcia's claims. The County argued that Division I found that Franklin County made "no promise to investigate the body that was dragged from the vehicle, let alone that the 911 dispatcher was even aware of it. The Court of Appeals ruled the 911 dispatcher's comments were not affirmative actions, as required by § 302." As a result, the County argued, collateral estoppel applied and dismissal of the claims was proper.

In response, Garcia noted that the opinion never actually discussed whether the County owed a duty.³² Rather, Garcia argued, the Court

²⁷ CP 186-87.

²⁸ CP 191.

²⁹ CP 9-17.

³⁰ CP 161-169.

³¹ CP 168.

³² CP 204.

determined that regardless of what the County did or did not do, the City did not take any affirmative steps to place Tiairra Garcia in greater peril.³³ Because the opinion only addressed whether the City owed a duty, Garcia argued, collateral estoppel did not apply.

Garcia also went on to argue that the County acted affirmatively and that the County's intervention created a new risk for Tiairra Garcia because the County's actions stopped the neighbors (Gorton and Genett) from personally informing the responding officer that Tiairra Garcia was dragged into the back of the house. As a result, Tiairra Garcia was exposed to additional criminal acts by the occupants of 1911 Parkview, Hollinguest, and Lockhard.³⁴

In granting the summary judgment dismissing Garcia's claims, the trial court acknowledged Garcia's arguments.³⁵ However the trial court stated that it felt that the County's argument was persuasive. The trial court concluded that "I just think in the long run, I think I'm doing the plaintiff a favor."³⁶ Garcia then filed this timely appeal.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. Summary Judgment Generally.

³³ CP 205.

³⁴ CP 206-10. ³⁵ VR 3:16-7:16.

³⁶ VR 14:1-14:2.

This Appeal seeks review of a dismissal of Appellants' claims on a motion for summary judgment. When reviewing an order granting summary judgment, an appellate court engages in the same inquiry as the trial court. Richard C. Gossett, et. al., v. Farmers Ins. Co. of

Washington, 82 Wn. App. 375, 381, 917 P.2d 1124 (1996) (reversed on other grounds, 133 Wn.2d 954, 948 P.2d 1264 (1997)). "Summary judgment is proper if the pleadings, depositions, and affidavits show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." Id. "The court must consider the facts submitted and all reasonable inferences from those facts in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party and the motion should be granted only if, from all the evidence, reasonable persons could reach but one conclusion." Id. (emphasis ours). Review is de novo, requiring the court to step into the shoes of the trial court by engaging in the same inquiry as the trial court. Id.

The trial court erred when it found that Garcia's claims were collaterally estopped by the 70395-1-I decision because the decision was silent to whether the County owed Tiairra Garcia a duty. Therefore, at best it is unclear whether Division I consider the County's duty. When the record does not show that the issue was actually and necessarily litigated, collateral estoppel cannot apply. Further, the duty of the City was

different than the duty owed by the County. 911 dispatch took it upon itself to take down the information given by the neighbor instead of allowing the neighbor communicating with the responding officer directly. Therefore, it knew or should have known that by gathering information from the neighbor and indicating it would give the information to the responding officer, the County took an affirmative act that both increased the existing risk and introduced new risks to Tiairra Garcia. The difference between the duty of the responding officer and 911 was different enough that, at the very least, it is not clear that the court in 70395-1-I decided whether the County owed a duty and therefore summary judgment was improper.

B. The Trial Court Erred When it Determined that Garcia's Claims were Collaterally Estopped Because Division I's Opinion in 70395-1-I did not Address Whether the County Owed a Duty and Because Division I Openly Acknowledged that it was not Clear what the County Communicated to the Responding Officer.

Summary judgment finding that Garcia's claims are collaterally estopped by the 70395-1-I decision was improper because whether Franklin County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia was not addressed by the Division I in its 70395-1-I decision. Generally, courts disfavor the application of collateral estoppel. In order for collateral estoppel to apply, the issue in the subsequent case must have been actually and necessarily litigated in the previous action. This means that the issue cannot merely

be contemplated in the prior action but must have been litigated to a final, conclusive ending. Here, the Court's decision in 70395-1-I may have discussed whether 911 relayed John Gorton's information to the responding officer. However, the court never stated whether the County owed a duty to Garcia. Thus, the trial court erred when it found that the 70395-1-I decision collaterally estopped Garcia's claims.

Review of whether collateral estoppel applies to a particular matter is reviewed de novo. State v. Vasquez, 109 Wn. App. 310, 314, 34 P.3d 1255 (2001) aff'd, 148 Wn. 2d 303, 59 P.3d 648 (2002). Collateral estoppel, or issue preclusion, bars relitigation of an issue in a subsequent proceeding involving the same parties. Christensen v. Grant Cnty. Hosp. Dist. No. 1, 152 Wn. 2d 299, 306, 96 P.3d 957 (2004). Collateral estoppel is different from claim preclusion in that claim preclusion prevents a litigant from asserting a claim that was litigated in a previous action while issue preclusion prevents the litigation of a particular element of a party's claim if that issue was previously litigated. Id. "Collateral estoppel may be applied to preclude only those issues that have actually been litigated and necessarily and finally determined in the earlier proceeding." Christensen, 152 Wn. 2d at 307. The elements for collateral estoppel are: (1) identical issues; (2) a final judgment on the merits; (3) the party against whom the plea is asserted must have been a

party to or in privity with a party to the prior adjudication; and (4) application of the doctrine must not work an injustice on the party against whom the doctrine is to be applied. Reninger v. State Dep't of Corr., 134 Wn. 2d 437, 449, 951 P.2d 782 (1998). The party asserting collateral estoppel bears the burden of establishing each element. Christensen, 152 Wn. 2d at 307.

Franklin County has failed to establish the elements necessary to show that collateral estoppel bars Garcia's claims. Namely, Franklin County failed to show that the issue of whether the County owed Tiairra Garcia a duty was actually and necessarily litigated. The County focused on two portions of the opinion to argue that collateral estoppel applied. The first portion upon which the County relied is found on pages 5-6 of the opinion where the Court determined that the 911 operator made no gratuitous promise to John Gorton that his information would be relayed to the responding officer.³⁷ Whether the promise was or was not made to John Gorton, however, does not show whether the County owed a duty. Critically, the statement "no affirmative promise was made" does not establish that the Court found that the County owed no duty to Garcia. The statement merely shows that the County did not explicitly represent to

³⁷ CP 187-88. ³⁸ CP 187.

Gorton that it would relay the information to the responding officer, not whether it has assumed the duty to do so under RESTATEMENT § 302B.

The second portion upon which the County relied is found on page 9 where the Court found that the City took no affirmative acts that would cause it to owe Tiairra Garcia a duty under § 302B.³⁹ However, in this portion of the opinion the Court specifically notes that it does not know what information was relayed by 911 to the responding the officer.⁴⁰ Whether the Gorton's information was relayed to the responding officer, however, was not relevant to whether the City owed Tiairra a duty under § 302B because at best, the City's actions would constitute a failure to act upon information. Therefore, it would be nothing more than an omission, not a commission. The determination that the City did not owe a duty under § 302B, however, was wholly independent on whether the County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia. Any affirmative act by the County that caused it to owe Tiairra Garcia a duty could not impact the fact that at best the City's actions amounted to inaction.

The County has also failed to show that 70395-1-I decided it owed no duty to Tiairra Garcia because in that opinion the Court acknowledged that the Court did not know what information had, or had not, been

³⁹ CP 191.

⁴⁰ <u>Id</u>. "The record does not demonstrate that the police promised to investigate Gorton's statement or were even aware of it."

relayed to the responding officer. The Court's acknowledgment that it did not have all the information related to 911's actions illustrates that the Court did not have to decide whether the County owed a Duty to Tiairra Garcia to determine that the City did not owe her a duty. Therefore, whether the County owed a duty was not necessarily or actually decided. Rather, it was merely discussed and ultimately determined to be irrelevant to the issues in 70395-1-I.

Division I in 70395-1-I did not determine whether the County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia because the issue was not before it and because whether the City owed Tiairra Garcia a duty was not dependent upon whether the County owed a duty. Thus, the Court did not actually consider the County's duty and did not necessarily determine whether the County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia. 70395-1-I only focused on the inaction of the City of Pasco. Because the responding officer's actions constituted, at best, a failure to act, whether the County took affirmative acts that gave rise to a duty was irrelevant to the Court's decision. As a result, 70395-1-I did not actually and necessarily determine whether the County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia and the trial court erred when it determined that Garcia's claims were collaterally estopped. Therefore, reversal and remand is proper.

⁴¹ CP 191.

C. Summary Judgment was not Proper Because the Actions by 911 Constituted an Affirmative Act that Caused the County to Owe Tiairra Garcia a Duty.

Summary judgment finding that the County did not owe Tiairra Garcia a duty under RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302B is improper because 911 dispatch's affirmative actions caused the County to owe a duty to relay the information Gorton provided to the responding officer. Franklin County owed Tiairra Garcia a duty because it acted affirmatively when it spoke to Gorton and gathered the information he provided. Pursuant to RESTATEMENT § 302B a person (including a government entity) may owe a duty of reasonable care if "the actor realizes that it involves an unreasonable risk of harm to another through the conduct of the other or a third person which is intended to cause harm, even though such act is criminal." RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302B. In Washburn v. City of Federal Way the Washington Supreme Court determined that an officer's affirmative acts, even if part and parcel to her general duties, may give rise to a general duty of care if she knows that her actions may expose a third party to an increased risk of harm from the illegal acts of another party. Here, the County acted affirmatively when the 911 operator answered John Gorton's 911 call, and gathered information from him that he intended to be relayed to the responding officer. 911 dispatch knew or should have known that Gorton intended to

relay this information to the responding officer and that had 911 dispatch not taken the information from him, he would have personally relayed the information to the responding officer. Thus, similar to the officer in **Washburn**, the 911 operator owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia to relay the information it gathered from John Gorton because the County knew or should have known that by operating a 911 dispatch center, callers contacted 911 to report information that the caller intended to be relayed to responding authorities. Accordingly, summary judgment was not proper.

The general facts of this case parallel those in Washburn v. City of Federal Way. In Washburn, the Supreme Court found that an officer owed a duty of reasonable care to a woman who had obtained a no contact order against her live in boyfriend because the officer knew (or should have known) that the woman lived with her boyfriend who had a history of violence. In late April, Baerbel K. Roznowski sought a protective order against her violent live-in boyfriend, Paul Kim. Washburn v. City of Federal Way, 178 Wn. 2d 732, 739-40, 310 P.3d 1275 (2013). After she obtained the order, she requested that an officer from the Federal Way Police Department serve Kim with it. Id. at 739. When an officer is to serve a no contact order, the officer will be given a "Law Enforcement Information Sheet" ("LEIS") that provides relevant information about the

victim and the person upon whom the order is to be served. Id. For Kim's no contact order, the LEIS stated that he had a history of violence, lived with Roznowski, and that he would likely need an interpreter. Id. at 740. When the no contact order was served, however, the serving officer, Officer Hensing, admitted that either he did not read the LEIS or, at best, gave it a cursory glance. Id. Additionally, Hensing observed that Roznowski was in the house at the time he served Kim with the no contact order. Id. Hensing confirmed Kim's identity, served him with the no contact order, told him he had to appear at court on the prescribed date, and left the task of explaining to Kim that he had to vacate the home to Roznowski. Id. A fight ensued and Kim eventually killed Roznowski with a knife. Id.

In finding that Federal Way owed a duty to Roznowski, the Court noted that while the criminal conduct of a third party is hard to foresee, such conduct is not unforeseeable *per se*. **Washburn**, 178 Wn.2d at 757. As a result, the Washington Courts have adopted RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302(B) which states "[a]n act or omission may be negligent if the actor realizes or should realize that it involves an unreasonable risk of harm to another through the conduct of the other or third person which is intended to cause harm, even though such conduct is illegal." **Id.** "The duty to protect against the criminal acts of third parties can arise "where

the actor's own affirmative act has created or exposed the other to a recognizably high degree of risk of harm through such misconduct." Id. at 757-758(citing RESTATEMENT (SECOND) OF TORTS § 302B cmt e). With respect to Roznowski, the Court noted that Hensing knew or should have known that Kim may turn violent once he was served because of the information on the LEIS and that he was serving Kim at Roznowski's house. Id. at 759-60. These issues coupled with the fact that Kim may need a translator to understand fully what the no contact order said and meant created new risks of harm to the already contentious relationship.

Similar to the officer in **Washburn**, the County owed a duty to Tiairra Garcia even though the duty created by the operator speaking to John Gorton was part and parcel to 911's general function. When the operator gathered information from John Gorton, she knew or should have known that Gorton intended for the responding officer to receive information he provided, i.e. that Tiairra Garcia was being dragged into the back of the house, and that he contacted 911 so that it would relay the information to the officer. Gennet testified that had she known that 911 would not have conveyed the information to the responding officer regarding Tiairra Garcia being dragged into the back of 1911 Parkview, she would have done it herself. Therefore, by operating a 911 dispatch and accepting Gorton's call, the County took an affirmative act. Note that

accepting Gorton's call is no different than Officer Hensing performing his duties when he served Kim with the no contact order. Accepting Gorton's call is part and parcel to the daily functions of a 911 operator. Serving a no contact order is part and parcel to the job function of a police officer.

Additionally, when the operator took that affirmative step, i.e. gathered Gorton's information, she either knew or should have known that unless she acted upon the information provided by Gorton, then Tiairra Garcia would be subject to additional harm by the criminal acts of the persons who dragged her into the back of the house. Similar to Officer Hensing, the operator was given information that was pertinent not only to the administration of her duties, i.e. notify the City that medical assistance will likely be needed, but also the information was pertinent to Tiairra Garcia's safety. Officer Hensing ignored the LEIS and therefore did not conduct his duties properly. Similarly, the operator ignored Gorton's information and did not conduct her duties properly. In both instances the improper performance of their official duties exposed a person to a greater risk of harm in the hands of a third party. In Roznowski's case the third party was Kim and his violent outburst. In Tiairra Garcia's case the third parties were Hollinguest, Lockhard, and 1911's occupants who obstructed the officer's investigation and provided false statements. In both

instances, however, the government actor knew or should have known that unless they performed their duties in accordance with specific information they had, another party would be placed into higher risk of harm by the acts of a third parties.

Because the County operated a 911 call center that took Gorton's call and gathered information from him, the County took affirmative steps to become involved in the unfolding situation at 1911 Parkview. Had 911 not taken Gorton's call, then he and his cohabitant would have relayed information regarding Tiairra Garcia being dragged into the back of the house directly to the officer. The operator either knew or should have known that unless she performed her duties in accordance with Gorton's information that Tiairra Garcia would face escalating harm from the illegal acts of third parties. Thus, to the extent the trial court found the County did not owe Garcia a duty, the trial court erred and remand is proper.

CONCLUSION

The trial court's application of collateral estoppel in this matter constitutes reversible error. Division I's decision in 70395-1-I focused solely on the duty of the City of Pasco and whether the responding officer's actions constituted an affirmative act that caused the City to owe Tiairra Garcia a duty under RESTATEMENT § 302B. The Court explicitly acknowledged it did not know whether 911 dispatch had relayed John

Gorton's call to the responding offer. However, for the purposes of the Court's analysis in 70395-1-I, whether the County relayed the information was irrelevant because the Division I's inquiry focused on the responding officer's conduct. Therefore, the notion that the court determined that Franklin County did not owe a duty to Garcia is inconsistent with the Division I's opinion. At the very least, there is doubt as to whether the Court decided the issue and therefore, a finding that Garcia's claims are collaterally estopped was improper.

Further, summary judgment finding that Franklin County did not owe a duty to Tiairra Garcia is equally improper. The facts show that the County took affirmative steps that it knew or should have known placed Tiairra Garcia in a greater risk of harm by the illegal acts of third parties. Accordingly, to the extent the trial court found that the County owed no duty to Tiairra Garcia, the trial court erred and reversal and remand is proper.