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

III. ARGUMENT OF LAW 

A. 	 Division I Conducted a Thorough Analysis of the 911 
Operator's Duties and Concluded that Plaintiffs' Claims are 
Barred Under the Public Duty Doctrine. 

Franklin County's involvement in this case is limited to its receipt 

of 911 calls including one from John Gorton. Plaintiffs attempt to argue 

that Division I made only a cursory remark about the 911 operator's 

actions. Contrary to Plaintiffs' assertions, however, Division I conducted 

a thorough analysis of the 911 operator's duties under Washington case 

law. Notably, Division I's analysis was in response to Plaintiffs' 

argument that the 911 operator made an implicit promise to convey 

Gorton's statement to the police. ll In other words, Plaintiffs themselves 

raised the issue of the 911 operator's actions and Division I, in response, 

thoroughly analyzed the issue. 

II CP 187. 
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Division J first noted that under the Public Duty Doctrine, a 

government actor is not liable for injuries caused by his or her negligent 

conduct unless one of four exceptions apply, including the rescue 

exception. 12 In this matter, Division I analyzed whether the 911 operator 

had given an express assurance that help would be provided, thus 

triggering the rescue exception. 13 Division I analyzed the issue of express 

assurance in context of Real v. City ofSeattle N and Chambers-Castanes v. 

King County/5. In Real and Chambers-Castanes, the 911 operator 

specifically stated they would send the police but failed to dispatch the 

police. 16 

Division I then contrasted the Garcia matter by stating, "No 

express assurance was made in the present case.,,17 Division I inserted the 

entire transcript of the brief call between John Gorton and the 911 operator 

in the Garcia matter. IS The Court noted that the operator repeatedly said, 

"okay" but made no statements about police response. 19 Following this 

review, the Court then went on to state: "No affirmative promise was 

12 CP 185. 

13 CP 186. 

14 134 Wn.2d 769, 786, 788, 9544 P.2d 237 (1998). 

15 100 Wn.2d 275, 279-81, 669 P.2d 451 (1983). 

16 Id. CP 186. 

17 Id. Emphasis added. 

18 CP 186-187. 

19 CP 187. 
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made. This does not amount to an assumption of the duty to aid or warn 

Tiairra. ,,20 

Division I then went on to note that Plaintiffs argued that the 911 

2operator made an implicit promise to convey Gorton's statement. ! 

Division I noted that there is no authority for Plaintiffs' assertion and that 

Washington case law does not support it.22 The Court then thoroughly 

analyzed the issue under Babcock v. Mason Count/3 and Johnson v. 

State. 24 The Court began its analysis by stating that, "Even if the 911 

operator promised to relay Gorton's statement to the police, that would 

have been within the scope of her duty to the general public - not a 

gratuitous promise.,,25 The Court stated that to trigger the rescue 

exception to the Public Duty Doctrine, the assumption of the duty to aid 

must be gratuitous as noted in Babcock/6 The Court then analyzed 911's 

duties under Johnson where the court found that the 911 operator did not 

make a gratuitous offer to render aid, because their actions were "made as 

part of its duty to all citizens.,,27 The Court then equated the 911 

operator's actions in Garcia to those in the Johnson case. Specifically, 

Division I stated: 

2°1d. 
21 Id. 
22 Id. 

23 101 Wn. App. 677, 685, 5 P.3d 750 (2000), ~ff'd on other grounds, 144 Wn.2d 774, 30 

PJd 1261 (2001). 

24 164 Wn. App. 740,752,265 P.3d 199 (2011), review denied. 178 Wn.2d 1027,273 

P.3d 982 (2012). 

25 CP 187. 

26 CP 188. 

27 d./ 
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"Here the 911 operator did nothing more than her duty to all 
citizens: responding to and relaying calls. This was not a 
gratuitous promise to an individual necessary to trigger the rescue 
exception.,,28 

Division I went on to note that the trial court properly dismissed 

Plaintiffs' claims on the basis of the Public Duty Doctrine. 

As a result of Plaintiffs' arguments, Division I conducted a very 

thorough analysis of the 911 operator's actions. Division I's conclusion 

that the 911 operator's actions do not trigger the rescue exception of the 

public duty doctrine collaterally estop Plaintiffs from litigating this issue a 

second time. 

B. 	 Division I Concluded Restatement Section 302B Did Not Apply 
as the 911 Operator Made No Affirmative Act 

Plaintiffs continue to argue that the 911 operator's actions 

constituted an affirmative act.29 This was the precise argument rejected in 

the Court of Appeals' decision. Division I stated: 

"Here, there was no affirmative act ... The 911 operator did not 
indicate that the police would take any particular action and did 
not acknowledge Gorton's statement about a body, other than to 
respond, "Okay". ,,30 

Division I already noted that the action of gathering information 

does not amount to the duty to aid. As there was no affirmative act, 

Restatement Section 302B does not apply. 

28/d. 

29 Appellant's Brief, pg. 15. 
30 /d. Emphasis added. 
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Division I thoroughly analyzed a government actor's duties under 

Restatement Section 302B, as well as what constitutes an affirmative act 

under Robb v. City of Seattle. 31 Division I noted that Section 302B and 

Robb "imposes a limited duty to protect third parties where an actor's own 

affirmative act creates a recognizable and unreasonable risk of harm".32 

Division I continued in distinguishing an omission or nonfeasance as a 

passive inaction and specifically stated that an omission is not an 

affirmative act.33 This, Division I noted, was precisely the issue in Robb 

where an officer's failure to pick up gun shells (thereby preventing a later 

shooting) was an omission, not an affirmative act,34 The court in Robb 

found that the officer's failure to act did not create a duty under Sec. 

302B.35 

Division I went on to contrast an actual affirmative act in Parrilla 

v. King County.36 In Parrilla, Division I noted, a bus driver committed an 

affirmative act by exiting a bus with the engine running while there was an 

erratic passenger inside the bus who then took control of the bus and 

crashed into a car.37 The bus driver's affirmative act of leaving the bus 

31 CP 189, 176 Wn.2d 427, 433-44, 295 P.3d 212 (2013). 
32 Id. 
33 CP 190. 
341d. 
35 1d. 

36 CP 190. 138 Wn. App. 427, 440-41) 157 PJd 879 (2007). 
37 / d. 
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with the engine still running gave rise to a duty of care to the occupants of 

the car under Section 302B.38 

Division I unequivocally stated that in the Garcia matter, "Here 

there was no affirmative act.,,39 Division I first analyzed the 911 

operator's actions. Division I noted that the 911 operator never stated that 

the police would take any particular action.4o Division I stated that, in 

fact, "the 911 operator did not acknowledge Gorton's statement about a 

body, other than to respond, 'Okay' .,,41 Division I concluded, "This does 

not constitute an affirmative indication that the police would investigate 

Gorton's statement.,,42 

As Division I already analyzed the issue of the 911 operator's 

duties under Restatement Section 302B and concluded that the 911 

operator made no affirmative act, Garcia is collaterally estopped from 

litigating this issue again. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

Franklin County's involvement in this case is limited to the actions 

of the 911 operator. Division I analyzed the 911 operator's actions under 

both the Public Duty Doctrine and Restatement Section 302B. Division I 

specifically determined that the 911 operator engaged in no express 

assurance nor any affirmative act giving rise to a duty under either. Thus, 

38 ld. 
39 CP 191. 
40 fd. 
41 fd. 
421d. 

- 9 

http:action.4o


Division I affirmed that Plaintiff's claims are barred under the Public Duty 

Doctrine and further affirmed that Restatement Section 302 B does not 

apply. The trial court in this matter properly found that Plaintiffs are 

collaterally estopped from litigating these same issues against Franklin 

County. This reviewing court should affirm the trial court.